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COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

HEALTH CARE SERVICES AGENCY (HCSA)

ADDENDUM No. 1


RFP, HCSA# 900417
Landlord Liaison and Housing Subsidy Management Services and 
Housing Education and Counseling Services 

Specification Clarification/Modification and Recap of the Networking/Bidders Conferences

March 28, 2017 and March 29, 2017
Notice to Bidders

This County of Alameda, HCSA Addendum has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail based on the attached bidder sign-in sheets.  This Addendum will also be posted on the General Services Agency (GSA) Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp
Any changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

Bid/Contract Questions

Q1: Are there any existing similar (past) housing bids available for review?
A1: Alameda County Health Care Services Agency does not have any similar bids on file for review. However, other municipalities (Los Angeles County, Seattle) have put out similar RFPs and can be contacted directly for requests to view winning bids or to connect with awardees.  
Q2: Is there a conflict of interest if a bidder is a Landlord with Oakland Housing Authority (OHA)?
A2: The County does not identify a conflict if a Bidder has existing relationships with public housing agencies, including the Oakland Housing Authority, as such entities are not funding the services included in this RFP.  Since all selected Bidders for contract award shall be expected to engage in collaboration and partnerships, Bidders are encouraged to explain how these existing relationships may enhance the provision of services. 

Q3: How do we qualify and certify for the Small, Local, and Emerging Business (SLEB) program by deadline submission?

A3: SLEB certification must be valid as of the date the Bid is submitted. The SLEB certification process can take 30 to 90 days to complete depending on whether or not additional information and/or documentation is required following the initial receipt of the application. Given the timeline provided in the Calendar of Events in this RFP (Section II, pg. 20), it is unlikely that certification not previously established will be valid by the bid submission deadline. It should be noted that non-profit community based organizations (CBO) that are providing services on behalf of the County directly to County clients/residents are exempt from the SLEB requirements and are not required to subcontract with a SLEB. Additional information about the SLEB program can be found on page 28 of this RFP and on the SLEB website: http://www.acgov.org/auditor/sleb/index.htm. 
Q4: What are the qualifiers and process of becoming a SLEB contractor? 
A4: Businesses that meet the definition of a local small or local emerging will be considered for County certification. A small business is defined by the United States Small Business Administration (SBA) as having no more than the number of employees or average annual gross receipts over the last 3 years required per SBA standards based on the small business's appropriate North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code. An emerging business is defined by the County as having either annual gross receipts of less than one-half (1/2) that of a small business OR having less than one-half (1/2) the number of employees AND that has been in business less than five (5) years. Small and emerging businesses must also satisfy the locality requirements (below) and be certified by the County as a Small or Emerging, local business. A certification application package is available at http://www.acgov.org/auditor/sleb/cert.htm.
Locality Requirements: An Alameda County vendor is a firm or dealer with fixed offices and having a street address within the County for at least six (6) months prior to the issue date of any RFP/Q being responded to; and which holds a valid business license issued by the County or a city within the County.
Q5: What are the incentives for a prime contractor to have a sub-contractor?

A5: The SLEB policy states that bidders not meeting the definition of a small or emerging local business do not qualify for a bid preference and must subcontract with one or more County certified small and/or emerging local businesses for at least twenty percent (20%) of the total bid amount in order to be considered for contract award. However, 
according to the SLEB Program Overview at http://acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm, Item d:

“The following entities are exempt from the Small and Emerging Local Business (SLEB) requirements as described above and are not required to subcontract with a SLEB:
· non-profit community based organizations (CBO) that are providing services on behalf of the County directly to County clients/residents;

· non-profit churches or non-profit religious organizations (NPO);

· public schools; and universities; and

· government agencies.”

Q6:  Is there a list of SLEBs?
A6:   The SLEB certification status of many organizations represented at the Bidders Conference for this RFP can be found at the end of this document in the Conference Attendee List, Contact Information section. In addition, the County SLEB database can be accessed by the following link: http://www.acgov.org/sleb_query_app/gsa/sleb/query/slebmenu.jsp. Please note not all vendors listed in the database are SLEBs – some are noncertified local vendors. Certified SLEBs are so designated.
Q7: Is there a preference for Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Business?
A7: The County policy provides for only SLEB and local preference points.
Q8: The Sam.gov is mentioned in debarred, suspended; is being registered in the Sam’s program a qualifier for sub-contracting?
A8: All bidders, its principal and named subcontractors, must be in good standing and not identified on the list of federally debarred, suspended or other excluded parties located at www.sam.gov.
Q9: Page 21 mentions Financial Stability; how does that element impact startups?

A9: For this RFP, a separate financial stability test will not be conducted. Rather, bidders, its principal and named subcontractors, must not be debarred or suspended. Please see A8 above. 
Q10: If two agencies want to collaborate, how should we tailor our bid?

A10: One organization must be named as the Prime Bidder and is responsible for bid submission while the other organization must be named as the subcontractor. A clear description of the complimentary roles and responsibilities of each agency should be outlined in the bid response. 
Q11: Should the Letter of Transmittal confirm how organization meets minimum qualifications and additional “F. Specific Requirements”?

A10: No. The Letter of Transmittal only needs to address how the bidder meets the minimum qualifications. The specific requirements are included in the RFP to inform the bidder of the County’s expectations of their obligations under any contract(s) awarded as a result of this RFP. 
Q12: Are there any special conditions related to bidding for North County since Berkeley has an existing Housing Crisis Resolution Center? 

A12: There are no special conditions for proposing to provide services in the North County/Berkeley region. The expectation is that selected Contractors work with selected operators of Housing Resource Centers and other service providers in their proposed regions to collaboratively provide services. 
Q13: Should the sub-contractor submit all their documents like insurance, etc.?

A13: No. Insurance documents will be required to be submitted after the RFP has been awarded and the contract is being assembled. 

Q14: Is there a specific font we are required to use in writing our proposal?

A14: There is no font type or size requirement; however, bidders are encouraged to exercise discretion with regards to the legibility of their bid responses.
Scope of Work Questions

Q15: Can you explain the transition period of units that are currently subsidized by providers in the County?  Timeline?
A15: There are several different Community-Based Organizations (CBOs) that currently manage Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) and HUD rental assistance funding for tenants in scattered Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) units throughout Alameda County.   Provider(s) selected through this RFP will be expected to take over some subsidy management responsibilities from existing providers.   This transition process will involve developing new subsidy agreements with existing landlords and tenants, completing Housing Quality Standards (HQS) inspections, and coordinating the transition with supportive service providers working with individual tenants.   HCSA wants these transitions to focus on preserving tenancy and relationships with existing landlords with quality housing.   For individual tenants, this transition may happen quickly.  In other situations, the transition may take longer to negotiate among all of the parties concerned.   For this reason, HCSA has budgeted for up to six months of overlapping subsidy resources for each individual tenant.  Transitions that selected providers expect to take longer than six months will need to be reviewed with HCSA staff on a case-by-case basis.   HCSA staff members will be involved with helping to coordinate this transition process between existing providers and the provider(s) selected through this RFP.

Q16: If a proposal for most or all of the County is competitive, but the County determines they want to break it out and offer a portion to the entity that went in for full and to a separate bidder, is that allowable (i.e. is it a bigger risk to apply for more geography than less)? Also, can you point out preference points for more geography?

A16: If there are two similarly-high scoring bids that propose overlapping regions, the county will negotiate with selected bidders to ensure full countywide coverage of services without duplication. There is no risk in proposing services in all regions.  However, the bidder should make clear their experience in each region and how they will cover the entire geography they are bidding for.  The County intends to contract with at least two organizations to provide Landlord Liaison and Housing Subsidy Management services and at least one organization to provide Housing Education and Counseling services, but final selected bidders and award amounts will depend on the number and quality of bids received.  All bids will be evaluated using the criteria on pages 23-26, which includes demonstrated capacity to consistently provide services at multiple locations throughout each region proposed (Housing Education Services)/OR strategies for finding units in each region proposed (Landlord Liaison and Housing Subsidy Management Services). 
Q17: What is the number of new units to be added over the life of the contract?
A17: This information is not yet known. The County is always seeking to add new housing and is exploring a variety of resources that may add to the rental assistance available. Additional units to be added after the first year will depend both on the success in the first year and opportunities to add resources. The County will work with the awarded bidder(s) to assess these opportunities and to plan for expansion. Funding may also be reallocated each contract year if underspent in certain regions. See page 15 for further details.   
Q18: Design of Coordinated Entry System – where do we find that detail?

A18: A link to the initial design for Alameda County’s Coordinated Entry System can be found on page 6 of the RFP. This link also leads to the EveryOne Home website which has further information about coordinated entry in general and the Alameda County design. Bidders may also review the now closed RFP for Housing Resource Centers and Coordinated System to Prevent and End Homelessness (issued on 2/10/17) for additional context. Final design work and the development of Coordinated Entry policies and procedures will be undertaken in the next six months.

Q19: How much money is available for Incentive and Risk Mitigation?
A19: There is no set funding cap for the incentive and risk mitigation fund. Proposed budgets should consider the number of units to be managed in the set of regions for which the bidder is proposing and should consider what amount might be needed per unit to use this fund as an engagement tool for landlords.  The awarded bidder(s) will work with the County to design the final policies and procedures for use of this fund. 
Q20: Is there a rental subsidy amount included in the program?
A20: Exhibit C (HUD and MHSA-Funded Rental Subsidy Programs) includes a list of rental subsidy programs and the rental assistance amounts associated with each. These units will be included in the units managed by the selected bidder(s) for Landlord Liaison and Housing Subsidy Management services. 
Q21: Can you clarify that there is no cap in dollars per region for each?

A21: There is no funding cap per region for the activities described in this RFP.  For Landlord Liaison and Housing Subsidy Management services, the anticipated units by region appear in the chart on page 15 of the RFP and are expected to provide guidance for estimating the amount of work needed to cover services in a region. Bidders shall propose budgets based on the regions proposed and (for bidders of Landlord Liaison and Housing Subsidy Management services) the extent to which they propose to provide optional activities in their program model (e.g. a Bidder may propose a higher unit rate if their model includes property management services).  A Bidder might also propose to provide one or both categories of service in this RFP and might be able to leverage staff or other resources differently in different regions. 
Q22 No cap on funding; please explain how we will develop our plan in more detail without being rejected for coming in too high.
A22: For Landlord Liaison and Housing Subsidy Management services, Bidder shall consider  the number of proposed units to locate and manage in the first year in their respective regions and provide a per unit/all-inclusive cost to the County  to manage that number of units. Because this is a new model in the county, HCSA is asking Bidders to propose budgets and staffing models that can work to provide the desired services.  Cost is one factor that will be considered in evaluating proposals.  
Q23: Estimated Number to be served? Or is it wide open for organization to propose?
A23: For Landlord Liaison services, the estimated numbers are provided on page 15. For Housing Education and Counseling services, these percentages are intended to estimate the relative volume of the population served in each region. The RFP for Housing Resource Centers and Coordinated System to Prevent and End Homelessness also references these percentages as a guide in the allocation of resources to cover each region. The estimated unduplicated demand for all services in the coordinated system to prevent and end homelessness, including housing education and counseling services across all regions that will be provided to both homeless and unstably housed persons in the course of a year is 25,000 persons. 
Q24: Outcome? Please be more clear. Do we develop as we go, based on regional guidelines listed and do we get points for proposing close to those goals?
A24: Performance measures will be developed jointly between County and selected bidders during the contract negotiation phase, using a Results Based Accountability (RBA) framework to identify program goals and measures of effectiveness.  Performance measures will be related to overall system measures in the countywide plan to end homelessness. 
Q25: Rental amounts determined by rent reasonable or HUD FMR?
A25: The standard for most housing subsidy resources covered under this RFP is rent reasonableness. However, some subsidies may be subject to Fair Market Rents (FMR) and in all cases subsidies should be budgeted to serve the largest number of people possible.  Bidders are expected to use their knowledge of the housing market in the regions that they propose to work in to make determinations about cost. 
Q26: Regarding the fee structure mentioned on page 16: is there an acceptable pay range for securing a new unit or retaining one that you could share with us?

A26: The County is not specifying a range with a minimum or a maximum per unit per month fee. Proposed unit fees should reflect the full range of services proposed, the staffing model developed by the Bidder, and should include optional master leasing and/or third-party property management services if applicable. See also answers 21 and 22 above.  
The following participants attended the Bidders Conferences:
	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	1. 
	Housing Consortium of the East Bay

410 7th Street, Suite 203

Oakland, CA 94607
	Lisa Hopkins
	Phone: 510-832-1382

	
	
	
	E-Mail: lhopkins@hceb.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: HCEB

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	2. 
	Housing Consortium of the East Bay

410 7th Street, Suite 203

Oakland, CA 94607
	Jacee Santos

External Relations
	Phone: 510-780-6115

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jsantos@hceb.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: 

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	3. 
	African American Business Exchange

4839 Allendale Ave.

Oakland, CA 94619
	James Moore
	Phone: 510-866-4685

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jamesmooremail@gmail.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	4. 
	Rebuilding Together Oakland East Bay
	Lisa Malul
	Phone: 

	
	
	
	E-Mail: lisa.malul@rtoakland.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	5. 
	Bay Area Community Services (BACS)

629 Oakland Ave.

Oakland, CA 94611
	Howard Chi
	Phone: 510-318-6130

	
	
	
	E-Mail: hchi@bayareacs.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: BACS

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	6. 
	Bay Area Community Services (BACS)

629 Oakland Ave.

Oakland, CA 94611
	Jamie Almanza
	Phone: 510-415-4672

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jalmanza@bayareacs.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: BACS

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: N/A

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	7. 
	Bay Area Community Services (BACS)

629 Oakland Ave.

Oakland, CA 94611
	Ben Blake
	Phone: 510-415-4672

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jalmanza@bayareacs.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:  Jamie Almanza

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes


	8. 
	Centerforce
	Dolores Lyles

Michael Hudson
	Phone: 510-423-2318

	
	
	
	E-Mail:  dlyles@centerforce1.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:  Centerforce

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	9. 
	Abode Services

40849 Fremont Blvd.

Fremont, CA 94538
	Jason Blair
	Phone: 510-270-1137

	
	
	
	E-Mail:  jblair@abodeservices.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	10. 
	B.O.S.S.

1918 University Ave., #2A

Berkeley, CA 94704
	Sonja Fitz
	Phone: 510-649-1930

	
	
	
	E-Mail: sfitz@self-sufficiency.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	11. 
	All of Us and Me
	Felix Guillory
	Phone: 510-557-1187

	
	
	
	E-Mail:  gcore_llc@comcast.net

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	12. 
	Echo Housing

770 A Street

Hayward, CA 94541
	Margie Rocha
	Phone: 510-581-9380

	
	
	
	E-Mail:  margie@echofairhousing.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	13. 
	Bonita House, Inc.

6333 Telegraph Ave.

Oakland, CA 94609
	Lorna D. Jones
	Phone: 510-923-1099

	
	
	
	E-Mail: lorna@bonitahouse.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	14. 
	CRIL

439 A Street

Hayward, CA 94542
	Michael Galvan
	Phone: 510-881-5743

	
	
	
	E-Mail: michael.galvan@crilhayward.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: 

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	15. 
	Eden I & R

570 B Street

Hayward, CA 94541
	Pamela Glassoff
	Phone: 510-727-9506 / 510-537-2710

	
	
	
	E-Mail: pamg@edenir.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Eden I & R

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      
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